
ΓΕΝΙΚΟΙ ΚΑΝΟΝΕΣ 

1. ΧΡΗΣΙΜΟΠΟΙΟΥΜΕ ΠΑΝΤΑ ΥΠΟΚΕΙΜΕΝΟ  

2. Η ΕΡΩΤΗΣΗ ΚΑΙ Η ΑΡΝΗΣΗ ΓΙΝΕΤΑΙ ΠΑΝΤΑ ΜΕ ΒΟΗΘΗΤΙΚΟ. ΟΤΑΝ Ο ΧΡΟΝΟΣ ΣΧΗΜΑΤΙΖΕΤΑΙ 

ΜΕ ΒΟΗΘΗΤΙΚΟ (ΒΕ/ΗΑVΕ/HAD) ΤΟΤΕ ΧΡΗΣΙΜΟΠΟΙΟΥΝΤΑΙ ΑΥΤΑ.  

ΓΙΑ ΤΟΥΣ PRESENT SIMPLE /PAST SIMPLE  ΧΡΗΣΙΜΟΠΟΙΟΥΝΤΑΙ ΤΑ Do/Does και Did 

αντίστοιχα και τα ρήματα σε βασικό τύπο  

3. ΟΛΟΙ ΟΙ ΧΡΟΝΟΙ ΔΙΑΡΚΕΙΑΣ (PROGRESSIVE/CONTINUOUS) ΣΧΗΜΑΤΙΖΟΝΤΑΙ ΜΕ ΤΟ 

ΒΟΗΘΗΤΙΚΟ ΤΟ ΒΕ  ΣΤΟΝ ΑΝΤΙΣΤΟΙΧΟ ΧΡΟΝΟ ΚΑΙ ΤΗΝ ΜΕΤΟΧΗ ΕΝΕΣΤΩΤΑ ΔΗΛ. ΤΟ  ΒΑΣΙΚΟ 

ΡΗΜΑ ΜΕ ΤΗΝ ΚΑΤΑΛΗΞΗ -ING 

ΟΠΟΤΕ ΕΧΟΥΜΕ PRESENT PROGRESSIVE: am/is/are+ v-ing 

PAST PROGRESSIVE: was/were +v-ing 

PRESENT PERFECT PROGRESSIVE: have been/has been +v-ing 

PAST PERFECT PROGRESSIVE: had been + v-ing 

Η ΕΡΩΤΗΣΗ ΚΑΙ Η ΑΡΝΗΣΗ ΓΙΝΟΝΤΑΙ ΜΕ ΤΟ ΒΟΗΘΗΤΙΚΟ ΡΗΜΑ (η μετοχή δεν κλίνεται και μένει 

αμετάβλητη στο τέλος) 

e.g. are you sleeping? / was he crying? / have they been playing? 

       I’m not sleeping/ He wasn’t crying/ They haven’t been playing  

PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE 

(have-has+v-ed ή 3η στήλη ανωμάλων/I have worked, she has bought, have I worked? they haven’t 

seen) 

Ο απλός Παρακείμενος συνδέει το παρελθόν με το παρόν.  

Χρησιμοποιείται : 

a.για μια πράξη που μόλις τελείωσε + just 

- Jane has finished her work. 

- They have just returned from Spain. 

b. για μια πράξη που άρχισε και τελείωσε στο παρελθόν αλλά ο χρόνος (πότε ) δεν αναφέρεται  

- They’ve made a lot of money. 

- He’s traveled a lot. 

c. μια πράξη που άρχισε στο παρελθόν και συνεχίζεται στο παρόν  

- I’ve worked in this company for 13 years. 

- Jane has studied in this faculty for 2 years. 

d. για μια πράξη που συνέβη στο παρελθόν, σε μη δεδομένη χρονική στιγμή και της οποίας τα 

αποτελέσματα είναι «ορατά» στο παρόν  

- I can’t come to your party because I ‘ve broken my leg.  

- He’s lost his job. He’s so worried! 



Time expressions 

Just, already, yet (στο τέλος της πρότασης), always, recently, lately, ever, never , 

 Τα Just, already, ever, never, always μπαίνουν πριν το βασικό ρήμα 

- Have you ever been to the Amazon? 

- I haven’t finished my study yet. 

- He’s worked hard lately. 

 SINCE / FOR 

Το Since δείχνει την «απόσταση» ανάμεσα σε 2 χρονικά σημεία, δείχνει την αρχή της χρονικής 

περιόδου : 

- I’ve lived here since 1993 {from 1993 to the moment of speech} 

- He hasn’t been out since out last weekend.  

Το For «μετράει την διάρκεια» μιας κατάστασης, δείχνει όλη τη χρονική περίοδο συνολικά:  

- I’ve worked here for two years. 

- He has been unemployed for 6 months. 

HAVE BEEN IN / TO VS HAVE GONE TO 

● Have been in/to = I am, I live, I work etc 

Χρησιμοποιείται για να εκφράσει που διαμένει κάποιος, που ζει ή που δουλεύει για κάποια 

χρονική περίοδο : 

- We’ve been in this town for 6 years. 

- Where have they been? I haven’t seen them for ages.  

● Have gone to 

Χρησιμοποιείται για να εκφράσει ότι κάποιος έχει πάει κάπου (ή είναι καθ’οδόν ή επιστρέφει ).  

- Tom has gone to the supermarket (he’s still there).  

- My aunt has gone to Miami. 

●  Have been to = I have visited 

Χρησιμοποιείται για να εκφράσει ότι κάποιος έχει επισκεφτεί έναν τόπο αλλά δεν είναι πλέον 

εκεί. 

- We’ve been to Paris twice this year. 

- Have you ever been to Jerusalem? 

*Το Gone to δεν μπορεί να χρησιμοποιηθεί με I, you, παρά μόνο σε notes  

 π.χ. I’ve gone shopping. Back in 10’. 

 

 



PRESENT PERFECT PROGRESSIVE 

(have been +v-ing / I have been working, he has been working, have they been working?, they 

haven’t been working...) 

Xρησιμοποιείται για να εκφράσει : 

α. μια πράξη που ξεκίνησε στο παρελθόν, συνεχίζεται ακόμη και μπορεί να συνεχιστεί και στο  

μέλλον. 

- Nora has been practicing the piano since early this morning.  

b. για να περιγράψουμε μια πράξη η οποία εξελισσόταν μέχρι τώρα ή μέχρι πριν από μια 

σύντομη χρονική περίοδο και της οποίας τα αποτελέσματα είναι ορατά στο παρόν.  

- My clothes are so dirty! I’ve been repairing the car.  

- Her eyes are so red. She’s been crying all day!  

c. για να περιγράψουμε ενόχληση η δυσαρέσκεια.  

- Look at this mess! They have been partying all night. 

- Morris is still asleep. He has been drinking again. 

 Since , For, How Long 

- I’ve been waiting for my sister since last night. Her flight is delayed.  

- How ( or For how ) long have you been looking for a job? 

PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE VS PRESENT PERFECT PROGRESSIVE. 

 Με τον Απλό Παρακείμενο ο ομιλητής ενδιαφέρεται την πράξη καθώς και για τα αποτελέσματα 

της. 

 Με τον Παρακείμενο Διαρκείας ο ομιλητής ενδιαφέρεται για την διάρκεια της πράξης –όχι τόσο 

για τα αποτελέσματα της . 

- Terry has cleaned her room. 

- Terry has been cleaning her room all evening. 

Με κάποια ρήματα όπως : live, work, stay etc, στον παρακείμενο απλό και διάρκειας τα since και  

for μπορούν να χρησιμοποιηθούν το ένα αντί του άλλου.  

- I’ve lived here since 1990. 

- I’ve lived here for 12 years. 

 

Focusing on result or activity 

The present perfect simple usually focuses on the result of the activity in some way, and the present 

perfect continuous usually focuses on the activity itself in some way.  

 

 



Choose the correct verb forms to complete the sentences. 

1. Have you always ___ garlic?            
      a. been hating  b. hated 
2. Thanks for the recipe book! We've ___ two dif ferent recipes so far.  

a. been trying  b. tried 
3. I'm worried about Sam. She's ___ too hard recently.  

a. been working  b. worked 
4. I've ___ to call the internet company all morning but I can't get through.  

a. been trying  b. tried 
5. She's ___ three main ways our company can reduce costs.  

a. been f inding  b. found 
6. He's ___ for the party for weeks. 

a. been preparing  b. prepared 
7. You've got white dust all over you! What have you ___? 

a. been doing  b. done 

8. Have your parents ___ yet? 
a. been arriving  b. arrived 

 

Present perfect simple Present perfect continuous 

Focuses on the result Focuses on the activity 

You've cleaned the bathroom! It looks 
lovely! 

I've been gardening. It's so nice out there.  

Says 'how many' Says 'how long' 

She's read ten books this summer. She's been reading that book all day. 

Describes a completed action Describes an activity which may continue 

I've written you an email.  I've been writing emails. 



  When we can see evidence of recent 

activity 

  

The grass looks wet. Has it been raining? 
I know, I'm really red. I've been running! 

 

 

PAST SIMPLE (Αόριστος απλός) 

( v+ed [2η στήλη ανωμάλων]κατάφαση- did Y v?- didn’t v /I worked, she worked, did I/he work? he didn’t 

work…) 

Χρησιμοποιείται για να περιγράψει: 

α. μια πράξη που έγινε και τελείωσε σε μια συγκεκριμένη στιγμή στο παρελθόν ή για πράξεις 

που δεν είναι δυνατό να επαναληφθούν (ανακαλύψεις, εφευρέσεις κλπ) 

- I went shopping yesterday. 

- A. G. Bell discovered the telephone. 

b. επανάληψη στο παρελθόν (+ when clause) 

 - When I was a child, I always went to the park on Sunday. 

c. διαδοχικές πράξεις στο παρελθόν 

- He stood up, walked out the door and left quietly. 

Adverbs / Time expressions 

Συνήθως «μπαίνουν» στο τέλος της πρότασης . αν όμως θέλουμε να δώσουμε έμφαση, τότε 

μπορούμε να τα τοποθετήσουμε στην αρχή.  

Yesterday, ago, last …, in the year 2000, this morning, at 8 o’clock etc  

- This morning, he came late. (τώρα είναι μεσημέρι, απόγευμα ή βράδυ-σίγουρα όχι πρωί) 

- Many years ago, people had no electricity. 

 Special structures 

1. The last time+ past+ was+… ago/in /on /at 

The last time I saw Niki , was 2 tears ago / in August / on Sunday…  

2. How long ago? 

How long ago did she finish high school? 

How long ago did she (last) go to the cinema? 

3. How long is it since + past simple 



How long is it since you last saw her? 

How long is it since you (last) saw her? 

** το Last χρησιμοποιείται για πράξεις που τείνουν να επαναληφθούν. Π.χ δεν μπορούμε να  

πούμε :  How long is it since he last died / left his work? Etc 

*** How long + present perfect + since 

 How long has it been since you graduated? 

 

 

PRESENT PERFECT SIMPLE VS PAST SIMPLE 

1. Ο Απλός Παρακείμενος χρησιμοποιείται είτε όταν κάποιος δεν ενδιαφέρεται για το πότε 

(χρόνος) ένα περιστατικό συνέβη είτε γιατί κάποιος δεν γνωρίζει το πότε . Με το Απλό Αόριστο ο 

χρόνος (πότε) δίνεται ή εννοείται. 

- James has left. 

- James left. (Yesterday, 2 years ago etc) 

2. με τον Απλό Παρακείμενο η πράξη στην οποία αναφερόμαστε ίσως να μην έχει ολοκληρωθεί. 

Aντίθετα με τον απλό Αόριστο η πράξη έχει ολοκληρωθεί 

I have corrected 50 test papers (so far but I haven’t finished yet).  

I corrected 50 test papers. ( the action is finished) 

3. Με τις εκφράσεις this week/ month/ year/ morning etc χρησιμοποιούμε παρακείμενο όταν ο 

χρόνος/χρονική περίοδος δεν έχει παρέλθει. 

- He’s done a lot of work this week. (still this week) 

Όταν όμως η χρονική περίοδος έχει παρέλθει χρησιμοποιούμε απλό Αόριστο.  

- This week we did a lot of work. (the week is over) 

 

 

PAST PROGRESSIVE 

(was-were+v-ing / I was working, was she working? they were working, we weren’t working…. ) 

Περιγράφει : 

a. μια πράξη σε εξέλιξη σε μια συγκεκριμένη χρονική /περίοδο στο παρελθόν + Time expressions  

- The fire was still burning at 8 a.m. 

- The dog was howling all night! 

- We were watching T.V all evening. 

b. μια πράξη σε εξέλιξη στο παρελθόν η οποία διακόπηκε από κάποια άλλη  

Past progressive + when + past simple 



- We were sleeping when the earthquake started. 

- I was sunbathing when it started raining. 

c. για ταυτόχρονες πράξεις στο παρελθόν  

 Past progressive + while + past progressive 

- They were playing football while we were jogging. 

- Mary was sleeping while I was doing the housework. 

 

Then, from.. to , at that time, at 7 o’clock,  

USED TO 

Χρησιμοποιείται για να περιγράψει μια συνήθεια στο παρελθόν η οποία είτε σταμάτησε είτε 

άλλαξε. 

Είναι πάντα σε αόριστο και δεν παίρνει άλλο τύπο.  

I used to play tennis 

He used to drink a lot of coffee. 

Negation / Question σχηματίζονται με το βοηθητικό did. 

He didn’t use to drink tea. 

Did you use tο get up early? 

He never used to play cards. 

 

Practice 

Α. Past (simple or progressive) 

1. He…….. (sit) in a café when I…….. (see) him.  

2. When I……… (realize) what he……… (mean) it be too late.  

3. The bus…….. (leave) while I……… (walk) down the road.  

4. When I……. (arrive) home he……… (still sleep).  

5. What …….. you ……(do) when I…….. (call) you at nine?  

6. He really……….. (like) his job because he……… (meet) a lot of people.  

7. He………. (fall) and ………(hurt) himself while he……… (run) in the garden.  

8. Yesterday, I……… (go) to an important meeting when my car …………. (break) down.  

9. When I………. ( get ) up again, I…….. ( be) covered in oil and dirt.  

10. What next! It was late and I knew my boss ……… (wait) for me. At that moment I……..  

( see) my boss. He……..( walk) down the street.  

 



B. Used to or past progressive? 

1. He ………….. (pay) me every week. 

2. I fell just as I ………….. (get ) off the bus.  

3. What ………. you ( do) when the burglars broke in ?  

4. Sarah ……….. (spend) hours in front of the mirror when she was young.  

5. You…………. ( never smoke) so much, did you ?  

 

 

 PAST PERFECT SIMPLE- ΥΠΕΡΣΥΝΤΕΛΙΚΟΣ 

(had+v-ed ή 3η στήλη ανωμάλων-had + Y +v-ed? - hadn’t+ v-ed/ had worked, hadn’t drunk) 

Χρησιμοποιείται : 

a. να περιγράψει μια πράξη η οποία είχε ήδη ολοκληρωθεί πριν από μια δεδομένη στιγμή στο 

παρελθόν ή πριν από κάποια άλλη πράξη στο παρελθόν.  

- When I got at the airport the plane had already taken off. {the plane took off at 7, I got there at 

7.30 } 

Adverbs/ time expressions-Επιρρήματα /χρονικές εκφράσεις 

Already, just, almost, yet, before, for, since, on Monday,  in spring, at 8 o’ clock, by the time, by....., 

when etc 

 

1. Past Perfect + by + time expressions 

- He had left town by 6 o’clock yesterday. 

2. Past Perfect + by the time + past simple 

- The children had slept by the time I returned home 

3. After, Before + (Past) Perfect 

χρησιμοποιείται για να περιγράψει δυο διαδοχικές πράξεις στο παρελθόν – μπορούμε να δείξουμε 

την πράξη η οποία προηγήθηκε είτε με απλό αόριστο είτε με υπερσυντέλικο χωρίς να υπάρχουν 

σημαντικές διαφορές στο νόημα. 

- Tim left for Sweden before I had (had) the chance to say goodbye. I didn’t feel the same after Tim 

(had) left. 

4. Thought – Said – Told – Remembered – Realized – Knew – Imagined 

μετά τα παραπάνω ρήματα στον απλό αόριστο μπορούμε να χρησιμοποιήσουμε απλό 

υπερσυντέλικο για να περιγράψουμε κάτι το οποίο είχε ήδη συμβεί.  

- I knew I had made the right choice 

- He only imagined he had heard a strange noise. 

 



8. PAST PERFECT PROGRESSIVE- ΥΠΕΡΣΥΝΤΕΛΙΚΟΣ ΔΙΑΡΚΕΙΑΣ 

(had been +v-ing-had Y been v-ing- hadn’t been v-ing / I had been working, had they been working? 

they hadn’t been working....) 

Χρησιμοποιείται : 

a. για να εκφράσουμε και να τονίσουμε την διάρκεια μιας πράξης σε εξέλιξη στο παρελθόν όταν 

κάτι άλλο συνέβη ή πριν κάτι άλλο συμβεί.  

We had been watching the film for an hour when the power went off.  

They had been living together in this house for 4 years before they quarreled.  

b. για να περιγράψουμε μια πράξη η οποία εξελισσόταν στο παρελθόν για κάποιο χρόνο και της 

οποίας τα αποτελέσματα ήταν ορατά στο παρελθόν.  

- Everybody was so tired! They had been trekking for 8 hours! 

- Greg was exhausted. The police had been interrogating him all night.  

Time adverbs / expressions - Χρονικά Επιρρήματα / εκφράσεις 

For, since, before, until 

 

A. Past simple / Past perfect simple 

1. The concert/ start/ the time/ we/ arrive 

2. He/ leave/ the office/ when /I /phone/ him. 

3. Mum/ not /cook/ dinner/ when/ we /get/ home. 

4. I /just/ water/ the plants/ when/ it/ start /to rain 

5. We/ move/ to a new apartment/ before/ two weeks. 

6. You .......... (can) tell by the tears in her eyes that she................ (receive) very bad news.  

7. There ................ (be) no liquor left after the party.  

8. The flat ............... (look) a mess. Nobody ................... (clean) it for month.  

9. The moment he ............. (see) her he............. ( fell) in love with her.  

B. Past perfect simple / progressive. 

1. The train ...............(already, depart) by the time we ............ (arrive).  

2. He was thirsty because he .................. (walk) for 3 hours.  

3. The mechanic .................. (just, repair) my car when I ............. (got) there.  

4. When the rain .................. (start), we ................. (have) picnic.  

5. His shoes were so muddy because he ............... (dig) the garden all morning.  

 


